
 

CITY OF ALTAMONT 
 

407 S HUSTON   ▪   P.O. BOX 305   ▪   ALTAMONT, KS 67330 

PHONE (620) 784-5612   ▪   FAX (620) 784-5882   ▪   WEBSITE: ALTAMONTKS.COM 

 

 
 

ALTAMONT CITY COUNCIL 
Mayor Richard Hayward  

Councilmembers: Ben Cochran, Raymond Coffey, 

Cameron Johnston, Lyle Sykes and Kyle Wiford 
 

January 13, 2022 

7:00 PM Regular Meeting  
 

CALL TO ORDER    

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & PRAYER 

MINUTES - Regular meeting of December 27, 2021 
 

INVOICES - 2021 Invoices - $23,859.73 + 2022 Invoices - $28,662.95 = $52,522.68 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT & GUESTS 
A.  

        

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS /PROCLAMATIONS  

A. Resolution 289 - GAAP Waiver 
       

OLD BUSINESS 

A. Linemen Services 

a. KMU Lineworker Apprenticeship Program 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

     A.   

     B.    

TABLED & PENDING BUSINESS 
A. Old Fire Department Building Demolition  

B. War Veteran Memorial 

C. Council Retreats - Will schedule in 2022  

D. Electric Rate Increase 

E. Sewer Rate Increase 

F. American Rescue Funds 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. City Administrator 

B. Police 

a. Parsons Sun drug article 

 

 



 

 

 
PAGE 2 

 

C.   Utility 

a. Altamont Emergency Liaison Program 

b. Gas Emergency Plan 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

A. Non-elect personnel - 20 minutes 

 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

 City Offices are closed on January 17 in observation of Martin Luther King, Jr. Day. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALTAMONT  
December 27, 2021 
 

REGULAR MEETING  The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM with Mayor Richard Hayward presiding.  Mayor 
Hayward opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance and prayer.  Councilmembers 
present: Ben Cochran, Raymond Coffey, Kyle Wiford, and Lyle Sykes  

MINUTES Councilmember Cochran moved and Coffey seconded to accept the minutes of the City 
Council meeting from December 9, 2021.  Motion carried. 

INVOICES Councilmember Coffey moved and Cochran seconded to pay the invoices in the amount of 
$83,866.04.  Motion carried. 

WAGE ORDINANCE #634 Repealing Ordinance #621 providing guidelines for the salaries and wages of certain 
appointed officers and employees of the City of Altamont.  

Councilmember Cochran moved and Wiford seconded to accept ordinance 634 the wage 
ordinance. 

 Councilmember Cochran yes, Councilmember Coffey yes, Councilmember Wiford yes and 
Councilmember Sykes yes 

KMGA UPDATE The Council was provided with the KMGA update for December 2021   
 
KMEA LINEMAN SERVICES The Council was provided with notes and an updated contract from the meeting that was 

attended on December 11, 2021.  Councilmember Sykes asked if there had been an electric 
inspection on what we have and if it needs fixed or updated.  Mayor Hayward and LeaAnn 
Myers stated that there has been work on checking poles and other things that would need 
to be fixed or updated.   
 
After discussion it was decided to get more information from Twin Valley and discuss with 
Utility Superintendent Brad Myers, what his thoughts were on cost of projects needed. 
 

CMB LICENSE APPROVAL Councilmember Cochran motioned and Sykes seconded to approve the CMB License for 
Casey’s General Store Incorporated. 

 
 Councilmember Cochran motioned and Wiford seconded to approve the CMB License 

application for The Corner Store LLC.  
 
2022 BUDGET The 2022 Budget Hearing was open to the public.  A line item was added to general fund for 
ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC the Library to allow for funding, the City Park budget was reduced by the same amount. 
HEARING No public comments or questions, budget hearing closed.  Councilmember Coffey motioned 

and Wiford seconded to approve the 2022 adjustment to the budget. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 1. Year End-Working on end of the year processing 
REPORT 2. Attended municipal training for processing 1099’s, W2’s and budgetary year end 

process. 
 3. KMU Safety Training-KMU presented safety training to the employees on safe lifting. 
 4. Notary Training-Attended a training over the new notary requirements. 
 5. Lineman Services-Attended lineman services discussion with Kansas Municipal Electric 

Agency and City of Chetopa on Saturday, December 11th. 
 6. Employee Benefits-Worked with employees to finalize optional benefits for 2022 
 7. American Rescue Funds Act-Worked with CIC Municipal Software support to complete 

the processing of the American Rescue Funds to the pay 10% of the resident’s February 
energy crisis bill. 

  a. Due to restrictions within the software, a credit was applied to each resident’s 
account instead of going towards their back bill if they still owed. 

 8. Utility Accounts-Bridget has been working to clean up terminated accounts with 
outstanding balances by sending them to CBK for collections. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS City Offices will be closed Monday January 3rd for the New Year.   

The family of Gail Nelson sent a Thank You card to the city for the donation to his memorial.  
 

ADJOURN Councilmember Cochran moved and Coffey seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 7:24 PM  
 
 
_____________ __________________________________________ 
DATE Heather Beasley, City Clerk  



Check No Check Date Vendor No Check AmountVendor Name

AP Check Register (APLT43) City of Altamont

Bank No: 1 Account: 006572

Altamont Builders Supply35288 1/13/2022 150 $121.64

B&L Waterworks Supply35289 1/13/2022 240 $1,742.48

Border States Industries Inc35290 1/13/2022 79889 $72.43

Chauncey &/or Patricia Poe35291 1/13/2022 80320 $18.62

City of Altamont Petty cash35292 1/13/2022 40 $40.00

Corner Store35293 1/13/2022 404 $473.02

Dollar General-Regions 41052635294 1/13/2022 79653 $93.40

EVERGY35295 1/13/2022 1000 $422.85

GFL Environmental35296 1/13/2022 80229 $3,223.92

HIGHER CALLING TECHNOLOGIES LLC35297 1/13/2022 691 $264.42

Hockett's Auto & Diesel LCC35298 1/13/2022 80059 $189.00

HUGO'S INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY35299 1/13/2022 740 $385.00

Joshua March35300 1/13/2022 80088 $100.00

KANSAS DEPT OF REVENUE35301 1/13/2022 866 $300.64

KANSAS ONE CALL SYSTEM INC35302 1/13/2022 880 $20.40

Kristen Cooke35303 1/13/2022 80319 $40.00

Labette Avenue35304 1/13/2022 100 $140.20

LABETTE COUNTY PUBLIC35305 1/13/2022 1057 $1,229.55

Lassen Printing Services35306 1/13/2022 80263 $326.00

LEAGUE OF KANSAS35307 1/13/2022 980 $100.00

MCCARTY'S35308 1/13/2022 1245 $135.31

MIDWEST MINERALS, LLC35309 1/13/2022 1340 $66.95

NAPA35310 1/13/2022 1439 $209.54

Page 1 of 2Operator: lmyers 1/11/2022 2:15:40 PM
Report ID: (APLT43)



Check No Check Date Vendor No Check AmountVendor Name

AP Check Register (APLT43) City of Altamont

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC35311 1/13/2022 1550 $55.96

PUBLIC WHOLESALE WATER SUPPLY35312 1/13/2022 1680 $10,000.00

Raymond Coffey35313 1/13/2022 9587 $52.08

Regional Veterinary Service35314 1/13/2022 1800 $65.00

Visa  798435315 1/13/2022 80318 $10.03

VISA 347035316 1/13/2022 1250 $160.33

VISA 574935317 1/13/2022 2447 $163.04

VISA 627535318 1/13/2022 79532 $436.48

Visa 764635319 1/13/2022 80272 $175.00

Bank Account Totals: $20,833.29

$20,833.29Total Of Checks:

Page 2 of 2Operator: lmyers 1/11/2022 2:15:41 PM
Report ID: (APLT43)



Wire Date Vendor No Wire AmountVendor Name

AP Wire Register (APLT44) City of Altamont

Wire Nbr.

1Bank No: 006572Account:
1/13/2022 865 KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE $2,816.50-890
1/13/2022 863 KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF LABOR $209.94-889

$3,026.44Bank Account Totals:

$3,026.44   Total Of Wires:

Page 1 of 1Operator: lmyers 1/11/2022 2:15:14 PM
Report ID: (APLT44)



























Check No Check Date Vendor No Check AmountVendor Name

AP Check Register (APLT43) City of Altamont

Bank No: 1 Account: 006572

ACTIVE 911, INC.35268 1/13/2022 79621 $260.00

ADVANCE INSURANCE COMPANY35269 1/13/2022 885 $62.50

Altamont Firemen's Relief Assn.35270 1/13/2022 79511 $3,589.79

CCMFOA of Kansas35271 1/13/2022 383 $150.00

CITY OF ALTAMONT35272 1/13/2022 60 $1,081.58

Ditch Witch Financial Services35273 1/13/2022 80064 $927.72

Gilbert's Tool Box35274 1/13/2022 80274 $58.00

IIMC35275 1/13/2022 800 $115.00

KANSAS MUNICIPAL INS. TRUST35276 1/13/2022 955 $9,359.00

KANSAS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES,INC35277 1/13/2022 960 $750.00

KANSAS RURAL WATER ASSN.35278 1/13/2022 881 $488.90

KANSAS STATE TREASURER35279 1/13/2022 971 $8,488.85

LEAGUE OF KANSAS35280 1/13/2022 980 $819.50

Miller Tire and Lube LLC35281 1/13/2022 80159 $18.00

National Integrated Pest Mgt.35282 1/13/2022 1442 $100.00

New Directions35283 1/13/2022 80230 $1,050.00

SEK Assoc. of Fire Chiefs35284 1/13/2022 1911 $75.00

SEKRPC SOUTHEAST KANSAS35285 1/13/2022 1906 $50.00

Treetop Products Inc.35286 1/13/2022 80321 $1,052.79

Vision Service Plan (CT)35287 1/13/2022 79945 $166.32

Bank Account Totals: $28,662.95

$28,662.95Total Of Checks:

Page 1 of 1Operator: lmyers 1/11/2022 1:59:21 PM
Report ID: (APLT43)























RESOLUTION # 289 

WHEREAS there are no revenue bond ordinances or other ordinances or 

resolutions of said municipality which require financial statements and financial 

reports to be prepared in conformity with said act for the year ended December 

2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Altamont, Kansas in 

regular meeting duly assembled this 13th day of January, 2022 that the said City 

of Altamont shall cause its financial statements and financial reports of the said 

municipality to be prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements as 

adjusted to show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws of this State. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Altamont, this 

13th day of January, 2022. 

          Richard O. Hayward, Mayor 

Attest: 

Heather Beasley, City Clerk 



LINEWORKER
APPRENTICESHIP
PROGRAM

CONTACT US

(620) 241-1423
kmu@kmunet.org
www.kmunet.org

Jerry LeDuc
(785) 955-0059
jleduc@kmunet.org



program overview

One of the most significant problems that many 
Kansas public power systems currently encounter is 
the ability to employ a well-trained and experienced 
electric line crew. Many municipal electric utilities in 
Kansas, particularly those located in small towns and 
other rural areas, often find it hard to find and retain 
qualified electric lineworkers.

In an effort to assist member utilities with this
ongoing challenge, Kansas Municipal Utilities is
pleased to offer the KMU Lineworker Apprenticeship 
Program. The program combines a nationally 
registered curriculum, classroom training and 
testing, correspondence instruction, and face-to-face 
assistance from KMU staff. The desired end result is 
a four-year program that – combined with hands-on 
experience at the utility itself – develops journeyman 
electric lineworkers of great value to the city and 
community.

The program also offers a chance for seasoned 
veterans in public power systems to obtain their 
professional credentials.

how it works

MEMBER ENROLLMENT FEE: $500 

Covers:  Program set-up and training materials for 
the first 2 years of the program (APPA Safety Manual, 
Introduction to the Power Industry, Core Curricula, 
Level 1 Lineworker, Training Record Book)

MEMBER QUARTERLY TUITION: 
$300/QTR  

NON-MEMBER QUARTERLY 
TUITION: $500/QTR  

NON-MEMBER ENROLLMENT
FEE: $800

Classroom and hands-on training 
sessions, testing, and skill evaluations.

LEVEL 3 BOOK:  $150 
Training material for year 4 of the 
program

DISCOUNTS: 
50% off workshop registration fees for 
5 core electrical workshops (Metering, 
Substation, Underground, Overhead, and 
Transformer Connections)  
Approximately $850 per year in savings

LEVEL 2 BOOK:  $150  
Training material for year 3 of the 
program

CURRICULUM:  The Lineworker Apprenticeship program curriculum contains 
750 hours of coursework spread over 4 years. In addition to the coursework, 
apprentices must complete 2000 hours of supervised work time per year. Hours 
requirements exist for 10 different work processes and must be logged daily in 
the training record book.

TRAINING:  Apprentices will be offered at least one day per month of face-to-
face time with a KMU instructor. During this time the instructor will provide a 
mixture of classroom and hands-on training in the morning followed by written 
testing and/or skill evaluations in the afternoon. Apprentices are expected to 
spend a minimum of 12 hours per month independently studying their training 
material in order to prep for the training day. Apprentices are expected to pass 
at least one training module every month to complete the course within the 
4-year schedule. KMU instructors will provide training in various regions each
month to accommodate easier travel for apprentices.

WORKSHOPS:  Apprentices receive a 50% discount to KMU electric 
workshops resulting in a savings of approximately $850/yr. During the core 5 
electrical workshops at KMU (metering, substation, underground, overhead, 
and transformer connections) apprentices will receive additional classroom 
instruction and complete targeted skill evaluations. Over the course of the 
4-year program, apprentices will have the opportunity to complete all of their
required skill evaluations if they attend the workshops each year.

pricing



KANSAS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES



CITY OF ALTAMONT 

407 S HUSTON   ▪   P.O. BOX 305   ▪   ALTAMONT, KS 67330 

PHONE (620) 784-5612   ▪   FAX (620) 784-5882   ▪   WEBSITE: ALTAMONTKS.COM 

City Administrator Report 

City Council 

January 13, 2022 

1. Year End - Working on end of the year processing for 1099’s,

W2’s and budgetary year end process

2. KMU Safety training - KMU presented safety training to the

employees on blood borne pathogens.

3. Payroll - Updated payroll withholdings and pay increase for 2022

4. Payment Plans - Continuing to review payment plan balances

5. 4th Quarter Report - the City Office processed 4th Quarter reports

6. Annual Reports - the City Office is working on annual reports

7. Audit - Preparing for the 2021 audit which is scheduled for March

29, 2022.

8. Police Applications - reviewed police officer applications with

Chief Shields

a. Starting interviews this week

9. Training - Heather is learning to process payroll and Bridget is

learning more about utility processing and billing.



Altamont Police Department 

Quarterly Report 

The police department has handled numerous calls during this period from animal control, civil 

standby’s/child exchanges, citizens assist, lake patrol, and safety checks. 

165 Notice to Appear in court Citations and 501 warnings issued for traffic violations. 

The following is a summary of the types of reports and investigations the police dept has conducted 

throughout the year and made several arrest from these cases. Some ranging from simple battery, 

domestic batteries, disorderly conducts, warrants, driving while suspended, violations of protection 

from abuse orders, violation of stalking orders, criminal damage, possession of drugs ranging from 

methamphetamines, marijuana, medical marijuana, THC infused edible candies, psilocybin ( magic 

mushrooms ), BHO ( butane honey oil ) ( THC wax ) ( dab ), possession of drug paraphernalia, possession 

of firearm while under the influence of alcohol, suicidal subjects, attempted robbery, theft, child abuse, 

criminal threats, breach of privacy and theft of services. 

Here is a look at KBI case numbers for the department, these are reported to the KBI. 

2016 – 42 cases, 2017 – 43 cases, 2018 – 49 cases, 2019 – 47 cases, 2020 – 43 cases, 2021 – 53 cases, 

even though the numbers seem low, keep in mind most of these cases had multiple offenses/charges 

not single charges, even though we seem to be ranging close during each year, what changes we are 

seeing is the rise in domestic violence calls, batteries and typical drug cases. 

Something concerning me as police chief is the rise in encountering the medical marijuana, THC infused 

products in vaping pens and the edible products during traffic stops and domestic calls inside 

residences.  Hopefully most of you seen in the Parsons Sun article, I recovered a sizeable amount of 

these products recently. 

I was able to reach out to a marijuana dispensary in Joplin Missouri and they offered me a chance to go 

tour their facility and explain how things work through the dispensary, which allowed me to gain 

knowledge and understanding of the products. 

We are gearing up to begin interviews for the new fulltime officer position and hope to have someone 

hired before the end of January. 

Michael Shields, Chief of Police 



https://www.parsonssun.com/news/article_34df534a-6d25-11ec-8af7-8fc966dbe7d5.html

Police uncover drugs in ammo boxes in Altamont
By Colleen Williamson cwilliamson@parsonssun.com
Jan 4, 2022

ALTAMONT — Altamont Police Chief Michael Shields donned a pair of gloves and picked up a
vacuum-packed bag of marijuana from among numerous items displayed on the table before
him Friday morning.

“Basically what happened is I received a phone call from a concerned citizen of what he
considered to be suspicious boxes on his property next to a tree line,” Shields said. “Nowadays
you expect that … anything out of the norm.”



When Shields arrived he found two ammunition boxes sitting there, which raised the question of
why were they there?

Upon opening the �rst one, Shields saw a large vacuum-sealed bag of marijuana. He
immediately shut the box and brought both back to the station. He put on his proper personal
protective equipment to handle drugs and started going through the boxes to document the
evidence.

He found bags of marijuana, a container of medical marijuana, psilocybin mushrooms, a large
amount of THC (tetrahydrocannabinol) wax concentrate/butane honey oil (BHO) and THC-
infused hard candies, in addition to a THC vape pen containing liquid marijuana, a vaporizer, dab
pen and glass pipes.

“I’m sure they are upset. To me there is a lot of money laying right there,” Shields said. “Their New
Year’s Eve party probably isn’t going to be the same now.”

Shields said some of the items can be purchased through medical marijuana dispensaries and
online, like the THC-infused candies. The sheer volume would indicate what was found was
potentially bought not just for personal use, but to distribute.

Shields said he’s worked narcotics cases his whole career, and with Colorado legalizing
marijuana and Missouri and Oklahoma both approving medical marijuana use, he knew it would
not be long for Kansas to see an in�ux of such items given it is more readily available than ever. 

The liquid marijuana in vape pens is very popular with high school students, he said.

“This is all stu� that to me is dangerous out there because of the di�erent potencies/purities.

“People don’t really stop and think about the availability. This stu� can be purchased not only at
dispensaries but online. If there’s a will there’s way,” Shields said. “The concerning part is people
not being educated on this stu�. That is one of my big things. With me having the smallest
police department in the county and the largest high school. … Kids are drawn to this stu�. A lot
of the packaging that goes along with it is to entice teenagers and young kids and adults.”

Shields pulled two printouts from a �le which, at �rst glance, appeared to show photos of
popular candy and candy bars like Sour Patch Kids, sour gummy worms, Skittles, Nerds, Nerd
Rope bites, Trolli Peachie O’s, Jolly Ranchers, Life Saver Gummies, Three Musketeers,



Butter�nger and Klondike Bars. Only upon closer inspection does one notice a small marijuana
leaf on the package, and a small box saying it contains THC, or maybe an alteration in the
spelling of the name. 

“The marketing on this stu� is very scary. … A lot of the marketing is to attract young kids and
teens. People don’t understand. We get complacent. In looking at these items, we see Life Saver
Gummies. We’re not looking for this little THC or this little marijuana leaf down here,” he said
pointing to the corner of one of the packages pictured.

Today, people can buy marijuana or THC-infused products such as candy, condiments, ice
cream, bread, cakes, cookies and brownies. In Colorado you can buy up to an ounce a day of
any marijuana product without a medical marijuana license.

Missouri qualifying patients or their caregivers may purchase up to four ounces of dried,
unprocessed marijuana, or its equivalent, in a 30-day period. For purposes of monthly purchases
and possession limitations, four ounces of dried, unprocessed marijuana is equivalent to 32
grams of marijuana concentrate or 3,200 milligrams of THC-infused product.

Citizens of Oklahoma with a medical marijuana license are permitted to have the following: up to
eight ounces of marijuana at home; up to three ounces of marijuana on their person; up to one
ounce of concentrated marijuana; up to 72 ounces of edible marijuana.

Medical marijuana licenses do not transition across state lines. In Kansas, all forms of marijuana
are still illegal.

Like with any drug, Shields said, even some of those who are prescribed a drug  abuse it and
take more than they should. Teens and children may not know the di�erence.

“The scary part is parents, educators, teachers, people like that, they don’t look at these things
that can be passed around in the hallways, be in their lockers, backpacks, vehicles, bedrooms.
Because unless you really look at these things, you might think this is just lip balm or makeup,”
Shields said, holding up a container of THC butane honey oil. “If they aren’t looking for it … they
may not see it. Even law enforcement o�cers may be missing some of this stu�.

“How many people really look real close at the packaging? Because of human nature, we’ve
seen it so many times, the packaging and you know these candies and we’re not reading it,”
Shields said. “That’s the scary part.”



Even the ones that are outwardly packaged with a label, like the hard candy found in the ammo
boxes, can be removed and placed in other packaging, and the candy looks no di�erent from
what people are familiar with that is sold at the grocery or convenience store.

“You take these things out of the package and put them in a Ziploc baggie and you don’t know
what you’re getting. Out of the package is what scares me. You buy a couple bags of these
(THC) Peachie O’s and take them out and put them in a Ziploc baggie and a kid’s sitting at school
handing them out to his buddies, who thinks anything of it,” Shields said.

People not knowing what to look for easily miss items. For example, Shields picked up a packet
from a nearby cabinet. It said aromatherapy incense. Not for human consumption.

“But this is actually synthetic marijuana (K2). They have di�erent �avors: apple, cotton candy,
watermelon, pina colada. This is one of those things. Because it says potpourri, if that’s sitting in
a locker at school, someone sees it and says, ‘Oh, it’s potpourri, it’s nothing.’”

Not only can small children mistake the infused candy for regular candy and overdose, even
young people who know they are taking something containing THC can overdose.

Looking for the intoxicating e�ect, some may not be aware edibles can take about an hour to
have an e�ect, unlike smoking marijuana. That delayed onset can be misleading causing
someone to ingest more of the edibles and overdose.

“That’s what is concerning, because the kids don’t realize, like with any type of drug or alcohol,
your body chemistry has an e�ect on how these drugs are going to a�ect you. … The potency
and dosage could overdose people. You see it all the time of little kids getting into suckers or
candies of maybe somebody who can actually legally have it, and these kids get a hold of it
because these kids are thinking it’s candy and they end up overdosing on it.”

The number of children under 12 ingesting THC edibles jumped from 132 in 2016 to almost 2,500
in 2020, according to the American Association of Poison Control Centers.

“This is very concerning to me for our youth. For our kids, not only for Altamont, but the
surrounding areas. I haven’t heard of too many agencies around here �nding the edibles; that
was the reason I felt we needed to get this out to the communities,” Shields said. “There’s a lot of



product there and it’s not like someone just had it there for their own recreational use, because
you have a whole smorgasbord of butane honey oil, edible hard candies, the psilocybin
mushrooms, the medical marijuana, the marijuana.”

“Some of the waxes and dabs can have around an 80% potency/purity to them. It’s no di�erent
than your methamphetamine. It’s all in the process of making it of how much potency,” Shields
said.

What is especially concerning is how much marijuana and marijuana products nowadays are
being laced, causing addiction to other drugs, or resulting in hospitalizations and death. The
potential is there for someone to do the same thing with edibles.

“I’ve been with the Kansas Narcotics O�cer Association for close to 17 years. ... Back in  the 70s
and 80s, it was your regular marijuana grown out in the �eld and harvested. Now you have a lot
of this stu� that is being laced with methamphetamine and fentanyl. It’s scary out there because
you don’t know what you’re getting — if you are getting regular marijuana or something that is
laced. Same thing with waxes and edible candies,” Shields said. 

Kansas could be next to approve medical marijuana use. Shields has his concerns. While people
hear about the tax dollars generated for states, they don’t hear about the costs — all the things
that come with some form of marijuana legalization. There are issues with the cartels and
dispensaries. Oklahoma has already changed its medical marijuana laws to try to address the
problem of cartels.

“It’s like with methamphetamine, you were seeing the backyard cooks, Nazi methods, anhydrous
cooks and things like that. Well, now with the super labs down in Mexico that can produce more
of it and the purity is higher, you’re not seeing those guys around here anymore. … It’s like the
bundles, tons of marijuana coming across the border. They are going to get it across,” he said.

Shields said he has spoken with o�cers in Colorado at a narcotics conference and they report
that they have people driving under the in�uence, more property crimes, more robberies and
similar crimes, because pro�ts cannot be deposited in the banks as it is still federally illegal.

It is not what he wants to see for Kansas. For now, in Kansas, marijuana products remain illegal,
and Shields is thankful. He said he will be taking the items found in the ammo boxes to the KBI
lab for analysis. For now, he thinks the youth of Altamont are potentially safer, whether the
owner of the drugs is found or not.



“I pride myself on doing this, getting this stu� o� the streets,” Shields said. “There’s a lot of it out
there. We just have to continue to combat it.”







































EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTIONS 
 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss an individual employee’s performance 
pursuant to the non-elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (1) to include:  (people to 

participate besides governing body.)  The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
____PM. 

 
I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss Attorney – Client privilege matter 
exception, K.S.A.  75-4319(b)(2) to include: (people to participate besides governing body.)  The 

open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
 

I move the city council recess into executive session to preliminary discuss employer-employee 
negotiations matter exception, K.S.A.  75-4319(b) (3) to include: (people to participate besides 

governing body.)  The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM. 
 

I move the city council recess into executive session to preliminary discuss property acquisition matter 
exception, K.S.A.  75-4319(b)(6) to include: (people to participate besides governing body.)  The 

open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.                                                                                      
 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss data relating to financial affairs or 
trade secrets of corporations, partnerships, trusts, and individual proprietorships pursuant to the non-
elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(4) to include: (people to participate besides 

governing body.)  The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.                                              
 

K.S.A. 75-4319. Closed or executive meetings; conditions; authorized subjects for discussion; binding 
action prohibited; certain documents identified in meetings not subject to disclosure. (a) Upon formal 
motion made, seconded and carried, all bodies and agencies subject to the open meetings act 
may recess, but not adjourn, open meetings for closed or executive meetings. Any motion to recess 
for a closed or executive meeting shall include a statement of (1) the justification for closing the 
meeting, (2) the subjects to be discussed during the closed or executive meeting and (3) the time 
and place at which the open meeting shall resume. Such motion, including the required statement, 
shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and shall be maintained as a part of the permanent 
records of the body or agency. Discussion during the closed or executive meeting shall be limited to 
those subjects stated in the motion. 
(b) No subjects shall be discussed at any closed or executive meeting, except the following:  
(1) Personnel matters of nonelected personnel;  
(2) consultation with an attorney for the body or agency which would be deemed privileged in the 
attorney-client relationship;  
(3) matters relating to employer-employee negotiations whether or not in consultation with the 
representative or representatives of the body or agency;  
(4) confidential data relating to financial affairs or trade secrets of corporations, partnerships, trusts, 
and individual proprietorships;  
(5) matters relating to actions adversely or favorably affecting a person as a student, patient or 
resident of a public institution, except that any such person shall have the right to a public hearing if 
requested by the person;  
(6) preliminary discussions relating to the acquisition of real property; 
 


	Agenda 1-13-2022
	Council Minutes 12-27-2021
	AP P13 2021 Check Register
	AP P13 WireRegister
	AP P13 2021
	AP 2022 Check Register
	AP 2022 Invoices 2
	RESOLUTION 289 GAAP Waiver
	KMU lineman_apprenticeship_brochure
	City Administrator Report 1-13-2022
	Police Report
	Police uncover drugs
	Utility Report (2)
	Altamont Emergency Liason Program Outline
	Gas Emergency Plan
	Executive Session Motion



